
MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/ 
TIRZ#2  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JJANUARY 29, 2026 29, 2025



IM-#10948009.5 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
and 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
(ALSO KNOWN AS THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE) 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND 
THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) will 
hold a joint regular meeting, open to the public, with the Board of Directors of the Midtown Reinvestment Zone on 
Thursday, January 29, 2026, at 12:30 p.m. at 410 Pierce Street, 1st Floor Conference Room (enter at the Pierce 
St. and Brazos St. door), Houston, Texas 77002.   

The meeting location will be open to the public during open portions of the meeting.  Members of the public may 
attend and/or offer comments in person as provided on the agenda and as permitted by the presiding officer during 
the meeting, or may view the meeting through the following link:  

https://midtownhouston.com/event/mra-board-meeting-jan-2026/ 

Click big blue button “TEAMs Meeting Link” 

Meeting ID:  247 576 862 826 
Passcode:  GddGFQ 
Or dial in by phone and enter the phone ID when prompted 
Phone:  +1 872-256-8243 
Phone ID 355 736 852# 

The Board of Directors of each of the Authority and the Midtown Reinvestment Zone will (i) consider, present and 
discuss orders, resolutions or motions; (ii) adopt, approve and ratify such orders, resolutions or motions; and 
(iii) take other actions as may be necessary, convenient or desirable, with respect to the following matters:

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order, Introduction of Guests and Board Comments

2. Public Comment

3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone
a. Minutes for November 20, 2025

4. Consent Agenda for the Authority
a. Minutes for November 20, 2025
b. Monthly financial reports for November 30 and December 31, 2025

5. Investment Report for Quarter Ending December 31, 2025

https://midtownhouston.com/event/mra-board-meeting-jan-2026/


IM-#10948009.5 

6. Board Governance and Committee Composition
a. Election of Officers

7. Affordable Housing Program
a. Affordable Housing Operations Campus and Related Administrative Matters

8. Capital Improvements Program
a. Maintenance and Operation of Authority Parks, Facilities and Street Improvements

i. Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Maintenance Services at Midtown Park
and Plaza and Bagby Park

ii. Midtown Planting Improvements Phase 1 (Bagby Street, Bagby Park and Midtown Park)
– Construction Contract Award

iii. Main Street Planting Improvements – Construction Contract Award
b. FIFA World Cup 2026

i. Landscape Architecture Design Proposal – OJB
c. Street Overlay and Sidewalk Program
d. Mobility & Pedestrian Improvements

i. Pedestrian Lighting Assessment

9. Executive Director Employment Agreement

10. Delegation of Authority to Board Chair

11. Urban Place Consulting Engagement

12. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards
to the following, as appropriate and necessary:

a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);
b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas

Government Code);
c. Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be 
discussed. 

Adjourn. 

________________________________ 

Executive Director MT/ks 



ZONE       
MINUTES 

DRAFT



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 

 November 20, 2025 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Reinvestment Zone Number Two, 
City of Houston, Texas, was held at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, Houston, 
Texas 77002 and via video conference on Thursday, November 20, 2025, at 12:30 p.m.  The 
meeting was open to the public.  The roll was called of the duly appointed members of the Board, 
to-wit: 

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Christopher M. Johnston 
2 Terence Fontaine 7 Chris Williams 
3 Michael Lewis  8 James Gilford 
4 Tiffani Robinson  9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Allen Douglas 

and all of the above were present in person at the meeting location except Director Gilford, who 
attended via video conference, and Directors Lewis, Fontaine and Williams, who were absent.   

In attendance were Authority staff members Matt Thibodeaux, Marlon Marshall, Jeremy Rocha, 
David Thomas, Kayler Williams and Vernon Williams; Cynthia Alvarado and Sharita Bohanna of 
the Midtown Management District; Barron Wallace of Bracewell LLP; Algenita Davis and Sean 
Haley of CCPPI; Roberta Burroughs of Roberta F. Burroughs and Associates; Zack Martin of 
Martin Construction Management and Designs, LLC; Alex Ramirez of Design Workshop; Maire 
Kelley of Walter P Moore; Carol Harrison of IDS Engineering Group; Tim Medrano of The Morgan 
Group; Linda Ragland of Womack Development & Investment Realtors; Jennifer Curley of the 
City of Houston; Yige Eagle Tang of The Goodman Corporation; Mike Morris of the Houston 
Chronicle; and Jack Valinski of Super Neighborhood 24. 

In attendance via video conference were Authority staff members Kandi Schramm, Sally Adame 
and Madison Walkes; Lorenzo Salinas and Angie Gomez of CCPPI; Melissa Morton of The Morton 
Accounting Services; Chrystal Davis and Chandler Snipe of the Midtown Management District; 
Corey Glenn of the City of Houston; Lynda Guidry and Giselle Martinez of Super Neighborhood 
62; Tara Green of OJB Landscape Architecture; and one person unidentified by first name. 

Director Douglas called the meeting to order. 

MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 23, 2025 

Director Foster made a motion to approve the minutes for October 23, 2025. The motion was 
seconded by Director Johnston and unanimously approved. 

DRAFT



EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board did not enter a closed executive session. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

____________________________ 
Camille Foster, Assistant Secretary 

_________________________ 
Date 

DRAFT



AUTHORITY  
MINUTES

DRAFT



1 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 November 20, 2025 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority (the “Authority”) was held at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, 
Houston, Texas 77002 and via video conference Thursday, November 20, 2025, at 12:30 
p.m.  The meeting agenda is attached hereto and incorporated herein. The meeting was
open to the public.  The roll was called of the duly appointed members of the Board, to-
wit:

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Christopher M. Johnston 
2 Terence Fontaine 7 Chris Williams 
3 Michael Lewis  8 James Gilford 
4 Tiffani Robinson 9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Allen Douglas 

and all of the above were present in person at the meeting location except Director Gilford, 
who attended via video conference, and Directors Lewis, Fontaine and Williams, who 
were absent.   

In attendance were Authority staff members Matt Thibodeaux, Marlon Marshall, Jeremy 
Rocha, David Thomas, Kayler Williams and Vernon Williams; Cynthia Alvarado and 
Sharita Bohanna of the Midtown Management District; Barron Wallace of Bracewell LLP; 
Algenita Davis and Sean Haley of CCPPI; Roberta Burroughs of Roberta F. Burroughs 
and Associates; Zack Martin of Martin Construction Management and Designs, LLC; Alex 
Ramirez of Design Workshop; Maire Kelley of Walter P Moore; Carol Harrison of IDS 
Engineering Group; Tim Medrano of The Morgan Group; Linda Ragland of Womack 
Development & Investment Realtors; Jennifer Curley of the City of Houston; Yige Eagle 
Tang of The Goodman Corporation; Mike Morris of the Houston Chronicle; and Jack 
Valinski of Super Neighborhood 24. 

In attendance via video conference were Authority staff members Kandi Schramm, Sally 
Adame and Madison Walkes; Lorenzo Salinas and Angie Gomez of CCPPI; Melissa 
Morton of The Morton Accounting Services; Chrystal Davis and Chandler Snipe of the 
Midtown Management District; Corey Glenn of the City of Houston; Lynda Guidry and 
Giselle Martinez of Super Neighborhood 62; Tara Green of OJB Landscape Architecture; 
and one person unidentified by first name. 

Director Douglas called the meeting to order. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

DRAFT



2 

Yige Eagle Tang of The Goodman Corporation introduced herself. 

Jack Valinski of Super Neighborhood 24 requested that the dates and times of Board 
meetings be consistent with the information posted on the Authority’s website and noted 
that sidewalk transitions into Midtown need to be extended for accessibility.  

CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE AUTHORITY 

MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 23, 2025 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR OCTOBER 31, 2025 

Matt Thibodeaux, Executive Director, presented the Consent Agenda. 

Director Foster made a motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 
The motion was seconded by Director Middleton and carried by unanimous vote.  

FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET 

Melissa Morton of The Morton Accounting Services provided an overview of the fiscal 
year 2025 budget, including sources of funds and capital improvement plans.  

Following discussion, Director Foster made a motion to approve the fiscal year 2025 
budget as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Robinson and carried by 
unanimous vote.  

MRA BOARD GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE COMPOSITION DISCUSSION 

Director Douglas provided a general overview of a forthcoming proposal for the Board to 
consider the composition and responsibilities of advisory committees, which will be 
discussed in more depth at the January Board meeting.  

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING OPERATIONS CAMPUS AND RELATED 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

There were no updates on this item. 

GRANT AGREEMENT WITH BOYNTON HOUSTON COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION – EXTENSION PROJECT COMPLETION 
DATE AND CONVEYANCE OF 2406 LIVE OAK STREET IN EXCHANGE FOR 
3224 ROSALIE STREET  

Barron Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented a request from Boynton Houston 
Community Development Corporation (“Boynton”) to replace one of the Authority 

DRAFT



3 

lots previously conveyed to Boynton with another Authority lot and to extend its 
project completion deadline for an additional eight months to accommodate 
permitting and other administrative delays in the construction schedule. The lot at 
3224 Rosalie that the Authority conveyed to Boynton has an active sanitary sewer 
line running through it that was not discovered until Boynton was in the permit 
stage with the City. Boynton cannot construct a home on this lot without having the 
line abandoned and relocated by the City at Boynton’s cost, so the lot at 2406 Live 
Oak has been identified as a replacement lot. 

Director Middleton moved to approve the extension project completion date for 
Boynton Homes Community Development Corporation for an additional eight 
months and to convey 2406 Live Oak Street to Boynton in exchange for Boynton’s 
conveyance of 3224 Rosalie Street to the Authority. The motion was seconded by 
Director Foster and carried by unanimous vote.  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 

 STREET OVERLAY AND SIDEWALK PROGRAM 

 Marlon Marshall, Sr. Director of Engineering/Strategic Development, provided an 
update on the street overlay project, which includes comprehensive mill and 
asphalt overlay to improve the road surface condition and sidewalks constructed 
to generally 5 feet width on local streets and 6 feet width on major thoroughfares. 
Isabella and Truxillo Streets and Chenevert, Jackson, and Hadley Streets are 
currently in the 60% design plan phase and Caroline and Cleburne Streets are 
currently in the topographic survey and geotechnical exploration phase. 

URBAN REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

i. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – ARUP US, INC.

Mr. Marshall presented the following work order from Arup US, Inc. under 
its professional services agreement for lighting design consulting services 
for the Midtown Pedestrian Lighting Assessment and Nighttime Safety 
Framework: 

Work Order # 1 – Cost Plus, Time & Materials in the amount of 
$167,300. 

Director Johnston moved to approve Work Order #1 for Arup US, Inc. in the 
amount of $167,300 for cost plus, time and materials.  The motion was 
seconded by Director Middleton and carried by unanimous vote. 

FIFA WORLD CUP 2026 

DRAFT



4 

i. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ADDITIONAL SERVICES REQUEST –
OJB 

Mr. Marshall reported that Midtown was selected by the FIFA World Cup 
2026 Sustainability Committee as a World Cup Green Corridor project 
showcase site for innovation and resiliency demonstrations.  The Authority 
is partnering with the World Cup 2026 Sustainability Committee, METRO, 
Rice University, and Trees for Houston on temporary and permanent 
innovation and resiliency installations at demonstration sites in Midtown, 
including the Wheeler Transit Station/Ion District, McGowen 
Station/Midtown Park and the HCC/Ensemble Rail Station. 

Tara Green, Principal of OJB Landscape Architecture (“OJB”), provided a 
overview of the demonstration and reported that OJB is currently working 
on conceptual design and budget development for the demonstration sites. 

Director Robinson moved to approve the Landscape Architecture Additional 
Services Request from OJB Landscape Architecture in the amount of 
$49,135.00.  The motion was seconded by Director Johnston and carried 
by unanimous vote. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Matt Thibodeaux, Executive Director, reported on the grand opening of New Hope 
Housing’s newest affordable housing development, The Gray. The Authority 
contributed land for this development, which will provide an enduring benefit to the 
community. Residents of The Gray will have access to financial literacy and 
workforce readiness programs, along with a tuition-free Montessori preschool 
operated by Bezos Academy.  

HUEMAN: SHELTER 

Cynthia Alvarado, Director of Operations and Strategic Planning for the Midtown 
Management District, provided an update on Hueman: Shelter, a temporary public 
art project supported by a $1 million grant from Bloomberg Philanthropies. 
Hueman: Shelter, which is a joint effort of the City of Houston, Career and 
Recovery Resources, Inc., and the Midtown Management District, developed six 
public art installations aimed at challenging traditional narratives surrounding 
homelessness and bringing art to public spaces while creating employment 
opportunities for unhoused individuals.  

DRAFT



5 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH PEARL RESIDENCES AT MIDTOWN OWNER, 
LLC 

The Board discussed this item in a closed executive session. Upon returning to open 
session, no action was taken on this agenda item. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board entered a closed executive session for this meeting at 2:11 p.m. to confer with 
its attorney regarding the Development Agreement with Pearl Residences at Midtown 
Owner, LLC pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code.  The Board returned 
to open session at 2:31 p.m. No action was taken upon reconvening in open session. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

________________________________ 
Camille Foster, Assistant Secretary 

________________________________ 
Date 

DRAFT



6 

AGENDA OF NOVEMBER 20, 2025 

[attached] DRAFT



MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
and 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
(ALSO KNOWN AS THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE) 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND 
THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) will 
hold a joint special meeting, open to the public, with the Board of Directors of the Midtown Reinvestment Zone on 
Thursday, November 20, 2025, at 12:30 p.m. at 410 Pierce Street, 1st Floor Conference Room (enter at the Pierce 
St. and Brazos St. door), Houston, Texas 77002.   

The meeting location will be open to the public during open portions of the meeting.  Members of the public may 
attend and/or offer comments in person as provided on the agenda and as permitted by the presiding officer during 
the meeting, or may view the meeting through the following link:  

https://midtownhouston.com/event/mra-board-meeting-2511/ 

Click big blue button “TEAMs Meeting Link” 

Meeting ID:  247 576 862 826 
Passcode:  GddGFQ 
Or dial in by phone and enter the phone ID when prompted 
Phone:  +1 872-256-8243 
Phone ID 355 736 852# 

The Board of Directors of each of the Authority and the Midtown Reinvestment Zone will (i) consider, present and 
discuss orders, resolutions or motions; (ii) adopt, approve and ratify such orders, resolutions or motions; and 
(iii) take other actions as may be necessary, convenient or desirable, with respect to the following matters:

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order, Introduction of Guests and Board Comments

2. Public Comment

3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone
a. Minutes for October 23, 2025

4. Consent Agenda for the Authority
a. Minutes for October 23, 2025
b. Monthly financial reports for October 31, 2025

5. Fiscal Year 2025 Budget

DRAFT

https://midtownhouston.com/event/mra-board-meeting-2511/


In accordance with the requirements of Section 551.043(c)(1) of the Texas Government Code, as amended, 
the proposed fiscal year 2025 budget is accessible on the home page of the Authority’s Internet website 
through the following link: https://midtownhouston.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/11/Budget.pdf 

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 551.043(c)(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 
Authority hereby provides the following taxpayer impact statement:  

The Midtown Redevelopment Authority is not a taxing unit as defined by Section 1.04, Texas Tax Code, 
and has no authority to impose ad valorem taxes on property.  For a median-valued homestead property, 
adoption of the proposed budget does not have an effect on the property tax bill in dollars pertaining to the 
property for the current fiscal year as compared to an estimate of the property tax bill in dollars for the same 
property for the upcoming fiscal year. 

6. MRA Board Governance and Committee Composition Discussion

7. Affordable Housing Program
a. Affordable Housing Operations Campus and Related Administrative Matters
b. Grant Agreement with Boynton Houston Community Development Corporation—Extension

Project Completion Date and Conveyance of 2406 Live Oak Street in exchange for 3224
Rosalie Street

8. Capital Improvements Program
a. Street Overlay and Sidewalk Program
b.,   Urban Redevelopment Plan

i. Professional Services Agreement – Arup US, Inc.
c,      FIFA World Cup 2026 

i. Landscape Architecture Additional Services Request - OJB

9. Executive Director
a. Affordable Housing
b. HueMan:Shelter

10. Development Agreement with Pearl Residences at Midtown Owner, LLC

11. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards
to the following, as appropriate and necessary:

a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);
b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas

Government Code);
c. Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be 
discussed. 

Adjourn. 

________________________________ 

Executive Director MT/ks 

DRAFT

https://midtownhouston.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/11/Budget.pdf


FINANCIALS -
DECEMBER 2025 

DRAFT



Jul - Dec 25

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400000 ꞏ Revenue & Support
400025 ꞏ Interest-Debt Service & Reserve 146,763.06
400026 ꞏ Interest-Other Bond Funds 109.04
400029 ꞏ Interest - Affordable Housing 259,317.22
400030 ꞏ Interest-Operating Funds 485,608.67
400031 ꞏ Interest Income 19,109.82
400040 ꞏ 3131 EMANCIPATION 225,858.14

400041 ꞏ Affordable Housing Apts Units 56,901.24
400042 ꞏ 402 & 410 Tenant Inome 107,822.55

Total 400000 ꞏ Revenue & Support 1,301,489.74

40010 ꞏ Other Revenue 635,120.13

400441 ꞏ Bagby Park Kiosk Lease 47,690.46
451000 ꞏ Gain/Loss on Cancelled Leases -82,177.20

Total Income 1,902,123.13

Gross Profit 1,902,123.13

Expense
500000 ꞏ BOND FUND EXPENSES

504000 ꞏ Projects & Expenses
500007 ꞏ T-0234  Parks and Open Space 4,214.00
500015 ꞏ T-0222 Street Rehab 173,235.01
500021 ꞏ T-0203 Entry Portals -20,000.00
500412 ꞏ T-0239 Brazos St Recon 11,380.90

Total 504000 ꞏ Projects & Expenses 168,829.91

Total 500000 ꞏ BOND FUND EXPENSES 168,829.91

510000 ꞏ INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXPENSE
510008 ꞏ T-0220 Afford Housing Land Bnk 1,579,141.18

510019 ꞏ T-0214 Caroline St 107,166.58
510024 ꞏ T-0204 Infrastruc/Street Lights 187,890.50
510040 ꞏ Developer Reimbursement 274,524.85
510041 ꞏ CIP Program Expenses 26,224.00

510043 ꞏ T-0234 Parks & Open Space & Mob 41,591.18
510045 ꞏ T-0224 HTC l - Bldg Maintenance 118,061.57
510046 ꞏ T-0221 Midtown  Pk 2,598.51
510096 ꞏ T-0207 Opr of Zone Prj Faciliti 523,219.94
510102 ꞏ HMAAC Interest Expense 1,495.69
510400 ꞏ Kiosk at Bagby Park 21,387.68
510534 ꞏ T-0225 Mobility & Pedest Imprv 45,010.91
510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs

510710 ꞏ Municipal Services Supplemental 67,586.34
510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs - Other 9,580.00

Total 510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs 77,166.34

Total 510000 ꞏ INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXPENSE 3,005,478.93

550000 ꞏ General & Admin. Expense
550002 ꞏ Contract Labor 5,607.00
550003 ꞏ Rent Expense 5,400.00
550004 ꞏ Salaries 985,584.62

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss

July through December 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Jul - Dec 25

550006 ꞏ Advertising & Promotions 29,393.93
550007 ꞏ Courier Service 387.88
550008 ꞏ Office Supply & Expense 17,453.49
550010 ꞏ Telephone & Utilities 3,196.27

550012 ꞏ Postage 397.98
550022 ꞏ Bank Charges & Fees 16,389.55
550023 ꞏ Trust Expenses 6,695.00
550025 ꞏ Professional Services 16,525.00
550026 ꞏ Accounting Consultants 108,357.53
550027 ꞏ Financial Audit 45,000.00

550028 ꞏ Legal Consultants 294,892.00
550029 ꞏ Admin Insurance 932.68
550030 ꞏ Planning Consultants 94,962.07
550032 ꞏ Engineering Consultants 31,226.41
550033 ꞏ Professional Fees/Other Consult 50,429.50
550034 ꞏ Equip Rent & Lease Expense 4,631.07
550036 ꞏ Licenses & Fees 562.70
550037 ꞏ Workman's Comp Insurance 5,407.48
550038 ꞏ Insurance - All 32,114.21
550039 ꞏ Computers & Repairs & Maint 20,762.47
550040 ꞏ Repair & Maintenance 2,378.94
550045 ꞏ Payroll Fees 16,377.59
550046 ꞏ Reimb. Employee Office Exp. 444.24
550050 ꞏ Depreciation Expense 776,123.66
550052 ꞏ Depre Expense-Midtown Park 318,242.56
550053 ꞏ Deprec Expense-Works of Art 22,140.54
550054A ꞏ Depre  Expense Operations Cnt 312,301.08
550058 ꞏ Travel 1,424.52
550061 ꞏ Public Relations 231.82
550065 ꞏ Training and Conferences -65.35

Total 550000 ꞏ General & Admin. Expense 3,225,908.44

550051 ꞏ Dep Exp - Midtown Park/Garage 231,048.90
55052A ꞏ Dep Exp  Midtown Park Phase 2&3 91,770.04

Total Expense 6,723,036.22

Net Ordinary Income -4,820,913.09

Net Income -4,820,913.09

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss

July through December 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Dec 31, 25

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
101001 ꞏ Wells Fargo Ope Acctg 64040 251,913.41
101002 ꞏ Infrastructure  Projects  1731 177,324.13
101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020 247,681.76
101004 ꞏ Texas Capital MM x 6052 668,489.93
101010 ꞏ WF Surplus Acct 63943 5,330,133.33
101020 ꞏ WF FTA Enhanced Path 63919 61.94
101030 ꞏ Wells Fargo 1094 458,829.30
102200 ꞏ Logic Operating Account 19,965,141.28
103200 ꞏ TexStar Operating Acct 1111 8,147.23
103600 ꞏ Wells Fargo Oper Inves 63901 307.86
103700 ꞏ WF Operating Saving 3215777180 46,244.54
104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts

104021 ꞏ WF Afford Hous 3927 639,048.88
104022 ꞏ WF Pilot Program  3935 354.87
104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028 12,329.92
104025 ꞏ Texas Capital AH MM x 6036 300,240.26
104116 ꞏ TexStar Aff. Hsng MM  1800 2,360.45
104200 ꞏ Logic Affordable Housing 13,885,665.26
1044000 ꞏ Wells Fargo NAI - 2259 296,377.41

Total 104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts 15,136,377.05

105000 ꞏ Trustee Investments
105001 ꞏ Pledge Revenue Fund 422885 2,111,010.11

105002 ꞏ Debt Service Fund 6,282,614.21

105003 ꞏ Reserve Fund 422897 7,083,823.94

105009 ꞏ Austin Park Maint. Fund 422919 4,102.02

107000 ꞏ BOND FUNDS 5,172.48

Total 105000 ꞏ Trustee Investments 15,486,722.76

Total Checking/Savings 57,777,374.52

Accounts Receivable 324,301.67

Total Current Assets 58,101,676.19

Fixed Assets
150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets

150010 ꞏ Office Furniture & Equipment 68,129.62
150011 ꞏ Accumluated Depreciation-Furn. -63,484.49
150020 ꞏ Computer Equipment 62,956.03
150021 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation-Comp. -49,223.18
150040 ꞏ Land - JPI Park 736,911.00
150045 ꞏ Walgreens/Lui Park Land 141,000.00
150062 ꞏ Land - Houston Tech.Center l 798,053.89
150063 ꞏ Houston Tech Center l 2,676,862.62
150064 ꞏ Accm Deprec-Houston Tech Cntr l -2,676,862.62
150065 ꞏ Land - HTC Phase ll 697,219.00
150066 ꞏ Houston Tech Center ll 3,135,865.07
150067 ꞏ Accum.Deprec. HTC Phase l -2,783,048.75
150069 ꞏ Land - Bagby Park 1,318,870.15
150070 ꞏ BagbyPark 2,453,218.83
150071 ꞏ Accum.Deprec. BagbyPark -1,945,119.71
150075 ꞏ Midtown Park 2905 Travis St 3,506,306.26
150078 ꞏ Midtown Park Land-Tracts l & ll 4,416,996.74

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Dec 31, 25

1500783 ꞏ Accum Deprec-Works of Art -332,979.19
1500784 ꞏ Acc Depr Office Housng & Garage -2,877,258.42
1500785 ꞏ Accum Depreciation - Bagby Park -349,929.40
150078A ꞏ Midtown (Superblock) Garage 13,784.20
150078B ꞏ Midtown (Superblockj) Park 5,299,848.40
150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable As

1500781 ꞏ Acc Depre - Midtown Garage -3,696,783.22
150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable As ... 23,104,895.00

Total 150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable ... 19,408,111.78

150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse
1500782 ꞏ Acc Depre MIdtown Park -5,197,961.62
150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse -... 19,094,553.00

Total 150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable As... 13,896,591.38

150078E ꞏ Land - Operations Center 1,002,054.00
150078G ꞏ Operation Center 3,535.75
150078H ꞏ Midtown Park - Depr Assc 2&3 5,558,842.94
150078I ꞏ Bagby Park - Depr Asset  (2020) 1,049,784.00
150078J ꞏ Opration Center Dep Asset 27,074,672.44

150078K ꞏ Midtown Park -Placed in Service -5,506,202.00
150079B ꞏ Works of Art - Donated 1,137,027.00
150080 ꞏ Land (Resale)

150081 ꞏ Earnest Money -15,946.09
150082 ꞏ Option Fees 5,000.00
150803 ꞏ Affordable Housing Legal 103,280.05
150804 ꞏ Affordable Housing Misc 756,345.80
150805 ꞏ AFFORD HOUS GRANTS 126,750.28
150080 ꞏ Land (Resale) - Other 34,579,600.93

Total 150080 ꞏ Land (Resale) 35,555,030.97

150080A ꞏ Land Held for Resale -10,723,654.68
150089 ꞏ Land HMAAC (Land) 1,206,150.00
150090 ꞏ HMAAC Property 918,850.00
150091 ꞏ Accum Depr HMAAC -696,795.06
150098 ꞏ Rice-Ion Garage Asset 56,900,000.00
150099 ꞏ Accum Depr - ION Parking Garage -2,086,333.00
150100 ꞏ 2800 MAIN 317,069.93
150782A ꞏ Acc Depr Midtown Park Phase 2-3 -1,147,125.11
150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets - Other -546,027.24

Total 150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets 157,569,699.15

Total Fixed Assets 157,569,699.15

Other Assets
180500 ꞏ Leases

180510 ꞏ Lease Receivable 1,887,482.88
180530 ꞏ Deferred Inflow -1,840,254.53

Total 180500 ꞏ Leases 47,228.35

Total Other Assets 47,228.35

TOTAL ASSETS 215,718,603.69

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Dec 31, 25

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 926,451.49

Other Current Liabilities
200001 ꞏ Current Liablities 794,952.30

200006 ꞏ Property Tax Liability 125,410.82
203500 ꞏ Prepaid Rental Income Liab 11,292.06
205000 ꞏ Current Loan Liabilities 4,505,000.00

25000 ꞏ Retainage Payable 3,500.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 5,440,155.18

Total Current Liabilities 6,366,606.67

Long Term Liabilities
210000 ꞏ Long Term Liabilities

210050 ꞏ Bond Payable Series 2017 32,625,000.00
210061 ꞏ Series 2017 Bond Premium 2,600,121.00
210063 ꞏ Series 2020 Bond Premium 1,256,000.00
210064 ꞏ Bonds Payable Series 2020 6,410,000.00
210065 ꞏ Bonds Payable Series 2022 19,595,000.00
210100 ꞏ Security Deposit LT 32,148.73

Total 210000 ꞏ Long Term Liabilities 62,518,269.73

210400 ꞏ ION Garage
210401 ꞏ ION Deferred Tax Increment 1,725,631.00
210402 ꞏ ION Unearned Concession Fee 1,531,015.00
210403 ꞏ ION Garage - Reversion of Rice 34,329,667.00

Total 210400 ꞏ ION Garage 37,586,313.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 100,104,582.73

Total Liabilities 106,471,189.40

Equity
1110 ꞏ Retained Earnings 114,068,327.38
Net Income -4,820,913.09

Total Equity 109,247,414.29

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 215,718,603.69

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Date Num Name Memo Credit

101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020
12/16/2025 12106 Bracewell LLP 34,407.25
12/16/2025 12107 Design Workshop, Inc. Houston Midtown District Work Order#1 Project 006... 1,764.00
12/16/2025 12108 Flextg Financial Services CANNON/IR-C5750I DECEMBER 2025 932.21
12/16/2025 12109 Goode Systems & Cons... Network Equipment November 2025 33,954.38
12/16/2025 12110 IDS Engineering Group Midtown PSA 2021 WO No 01B  Professional Servi... 1,919.14
12/16/2025 12111 Lion Heart Project 043-001 Midtown Work order 1 - 11.30.2025 2,250.00
12/16/2025 12112 Midtown Management D... Reimbursable Shared Marketing Expenses Septem... 1,366.41
12/16/2025 12113 Pitney Bowes Global Fin... Property Tax 2025 17.44
12/16/2025 12114 RLI Insurance Company MRA Bond - #LFM0047845 02.01.26 - 02.01.27 368.00
12/16/2025 12115 The Goodman Corporati... 11,632.23
12/16/2025 12116 The Harris Center for M... CCAP Midtown November 2025 13,888.73
12/16/2025 12117 United National Insuranc... 410 Pierce 4,080.00
12/16/2025 12118 Walter P. Moore 17,373.40
12/16/2025 12119 The Goodman Corporati... MID 127 -November 2025 63,158.93
12/23/2025 ACH Reliant Energy 410  PIERCE STREET - 75237956-0 DEC 2025 3,817.45
12/23/2025 ACH Reliant Energy 402 PIERCE ST - 75237953-7 DECEMBER 2025 5,253.61
12/23/2025 ACH G&A Partners PR 12/31/2025 102,129.75
01/07/2026 12120 Amanda Hansen Group Crisis Communications and Public Relations Retain... 15,500.00
01/07/2026 12121 Comcast 410 SERVICE  Ste #355 to January 29, 2026 306.91
01/07/2026 12122 Kayler Williams Meeting and travel to meeting 8.59
01/07/2026 12123 NEVA Corporation 43,863.00
01/07/2026 12124 Pitney Bowes Global Fin... Supplies 12/3/25 - Ink Pad Replacement 76.06
01/07/2026 12125 The Morton Accounting ... October 2025 CPA Services 24,292.54
01/07/2026 12126 WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN... Customer # 10460287 Rental Period 12.01.2025 - 1... 452.11
01/14/2026 12127 Condor Express Deliver... Delivery & Delivery Return December 2025 216.32
01/14/2026 12128 Goode Systems & Cons... 4,280.10
01/14/2026 12129 Goode Technology Group System Support November 2025 468.75
01/14/2026 12130 Masterson Advisors LLC Continuing Disclosure Annual Reporting Serv 2025 3,500.00
01/14/2026 12131 Midtown Parks Conserv... MRA Reimbursable Expenses for WF CC Charges ... 440.47
01/14/2026 12132 Staples Advantage Office supplies 12.25.25 913.08
01/14/2026 12133 The Harris Center for M... 33,068.81
01/14/2026 12134 The Morton Accounting ... November 2025 CPA Services 27,123.76
01/14/2026 12135 Walter P. Moore 15,671.00
01/14/2026 12136 Midtown Parks Conserv... MRA Reimbursable Expenses for WF CC Charges ... 1,636.58
01/14/2026 12137 Equi-Tax, Inc. MontlyConsultation Service fee per contract January... 500.00

Total 101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020 470,631.01

TOTAL 470,631.01

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Operating Disbursements

As of January 16, 2026

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Date Num Name Memo Credit

104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts
104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028
12/16/2025 5137 Bracewell LLP Third Ward Acquisitions/Affordable Housing Legal - Thro... 13,781.25
12/16/2025 5138 CCPPI MIdtown Affordable Housing Plan Grant October 2025 119,083.33
12/16/2025 5139 Four Eleven LLC Landscape Services October 2025 21,798.76
12/17/2025 ACH BBG Real Estate Services VOID: Appraisal Fees December 2025
12/22/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 20.28
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.63
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 8.35
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 26.77
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 4.96
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 32.82
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 4.80
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 515.51
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 30.57
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 155.64
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 65.12
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 30.20
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 27.28
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 26.01
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 16.22
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 18.14
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 42.58
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 3.81
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 21.08
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 134.25
12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 33.84
01/07/2026 5141 American Fence Company, Inc. 2,060.20
01/07/2026 5142 Four Eleven LLC Landscape Services November 2025 23,436.51
01/07/2026 5143 Jaime Giraldo Checking MRA Owned Properties Sept 26 - Nov 19, 202... 46.20
01/07/2026 5144 Roberta F. Burroughs &  Associ... Project:  Midtown Affordable Housing Plan - Impl Srvs F... 8,000.00
01/07/2026 5145 TransTeQ November 2025 Landscaping 34,582.28
01/14/2026 5146 TransTeQ December 2025 Landscaping 29,206.49

Total 104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028 253,391.97

Total 104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts 253,391.97

TOTAL 253,391.97

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Affordable Housing Disbursements

As of January 16, 2026

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



FINANCIALS-
NOVEMBER 2025 

DRAFT



Jul - Nov 25

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400000 ꞏ Revenue & Support
400025 ꞏ Interest-Debt Service & Reserve 123,933.40
400026 ꞏ Interest-Other Bond Funds 91.72
400029 ꞏ Interest - Affordable Housing 211,351.94
400030 ꞏ Interest-Operating Funds 413,570.93
400031 ꞏ Interest Income 13,156.42
400040 ꞏ 3131 EMANCIPATION 209,177.88

400041 ꞏ Affordable Housing Apts Units 51,787.60
400042 ꞏ 402 & 410 Tenant Inome 83,885.49

Total 400000 ꞏ Revenue & Support 1,106,955.38

40010 ꞏ Other Revenue 371,778.14

400441 ꞏ Bagby Park Kiosk Lease 25,929.78
451000 ꞏ Gain/Loss on Cancelled Leases -41,088.60

Total Income 1,463,574.70

Gross Profit 1,463,574.70

Expense
500000 ꞏ BOND FUND EXPENSES

504000 ꞏ Projects & Expenses
500007 ꞏ T-0234  Parks and Open Space 3,130.00
500015 ꞏ T-0222 Street Rehab 169,355.01
500021 ꞏ T-0203 Entry Portals -20,000.00
500412 ꞏ T-0239 Brazos St Recon 2,389.90

Total 504000 ꞏ Projects & Expenses 154,874.91

Total 500000 ꞏ BOND FUND EXPENSES 154,874.91

510000 ꞏ INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXPENSE
510008 ꞏ T-0220 Afford Housing Land Bnk 1,371,169.92

510019 ꞏ T-0214 Caroline St 107,166.58
510024 ꞏ T-0204 Infrastruc/Street Lights 165.50
510040 ꞏ Developer Reimbursement 274,524.85
510041 ꞏ CIP Program Expenses 16,905.25

510043 ꞏ T-0234 Parks & Open Space & Mob 37,986.68
510045 ꞏ T-0224 HTC l - Bldg Maintenance 109,014.56
510046 ꞏ T-0221 Midtown  Pk 2,146.40
510096 ꞏ T-0207 Opr of Zone Prj Faciliti 287,038.80
510102 ꞏ HMAAC Interest Expense 1,495.69
510400 ꞏ Kiosk at Bagby Park 17,987.68
510534 ꞏ T-0225 Mobility & Pedest Imprv 45,010.91
510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs

510710 ꞏ Municipal Services Supplemental 57,586.34
510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs - Other 9,580.00

Total 510700 ꞏ Municipal Services Costs 67,166.34

Total 510000 ꞏ INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXP... 2,337,779.16

550000 ꞏ General & Admin. Expense
550002 ꞏ Contract Labor 5,607.00
550003 ꞏ Rent Expense 4,500.00
550004 ꞏ Salaries 961,229.36

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss

July through November 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Jul - Nov 25

550006 ꞏ Advertising & Promotions 24,195.31
550007 ꞏ Courier Service 622.35
550008 ꞏ Office Supply & Expense 16,770.19
550010 ꞏ Telephone & Utilities 5,017.91

550012 ꞏ Postage 397.98
550022 ꞏ Bank Charges & Fees 14,825.67
550023 ꞏ Trust Expenses 3,195.00
550025 ꞏ Professional Services 13,725.00
550026 ꞏ Accounting Consultants 153,016.75
550027 ꞏ Financial Audit 45,000.00

550028 ꞏ Legal Consultants 288,770.00
550029 ꞏ Admin Insurance 770.90
550030 ꞏ Planning Consultants 79,462.07
550032 ꞏ Engineering Consultants 26,325.39
550033 ꞏ Professional Fees/Other Consult 50,429.50
550034 ꞏ Equip Rent & Lease Expense 4,319.06
550036 ꞏ Licenses & Fees 562.70
550037 ꞏ Workman's Comp Insurance 4,648.14
550038 ꞏ Insurance - All 27,351.21
550039 ꞏ Computers & Repairs & Maint 36,018.55
550040 ꞏ Repair & Maintenance 3,943.68
550045 ꞏ Payroll Fees 13,607.67
550046 ꞏ Reimb. Employee Office Exp. 444.24
550050 ꞏ Depreciation Expense 388,061.83
550052 ꞏ Depre Expense-Midtown Park 159,121.28
550053 ꞏ Deprec Expense-Works of Art 11,070.27
550054A ꞏ Depre  Expense Operations Cnt 156,150.54
550058 ꞏ Travel 1,415.93
550061 ꞏ Public Relations 231.82

Total 550000 ꞏ General & Admin. Expense 2,500,807.30

550051 ꞏ Dep Exp - Midtown Park/Garage 115,524.45
55052A ꞏ Dep Exp  Midtown Park Phase 2&3 45,885.02

Total Expense 5,154,870.84

Net Ordinary Income -3,691,296.14

Net Income -3,691,296.14

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss

July through November 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Nov 30, 25

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
101001 ꞏ Wells Fargo Ope Acctg 64040 236,392.03
101002 ꞏ Infrastructure  Projects  1731 177,251.85
101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020 214,410.89
101004 ꞏ Texas Capital MM x 6052 1,183,072.67
101010 ꞏ WF Surplus Acct 63943 5,327,960.85
101020 ꞏ WF FTA Enhanced Path 63919 61.92
101030 ꞏ Wells Fargo 1094 434,892.24
102200 ꞏ Logic Operating Account 19,898,359.44
103200 ꞏ TexStar Operating Acct 1111 8,120.84
103600 ꞏ Wells Fargo Oper Inves 63901 307.74
103700 ꞏ WF Operating Saving 3215777180 46,225.70
104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts

104021 ꞏ WF Afford Hous 3927 638,788.41
104022 ꞏ WF Pilot Program  3935 354.73
104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028 13,884.55
104025 ꞏ Texas Capital AH MM x 6036 473,875.92
104116 ꞏ TexStar Aff. Hsng MM  1800 2,352.82
104200 ꞏ Logic Affordable Housing 13,839,218.78
1044000 ꞏ Wells Fargo NAI - 2259 364,194.31

Total 104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts 15,332,669.52

105000 ꞏ Trustee Investments
105001 ꞏ Pledge Revenue Fund 422885 2,105,068.23

105002 ꞏ Debt Service Fund 6,282,614.21

105003 ꞏ Reserve Fund 422897 7,060,994.28

105009 ꞏ Austin Park Maint. Fund 422919 4,090.50

107000 ꞏ BOND FUNDS
107018 ꞏ LOGIC 2017 PROJECT FUND 5,155.16

Total 107000 ꞏ BOND FUNDS 5,155.16

Total 105000 ꞏ Trustee Investments 15,457,922.38

Total Checking/Savings 58,317,648.07

Accounts Receivable 23,341.56

Other Current Assets 1,662.76

Total Current Assets 58,342,652.39

Fixed Assets
150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets

150010 ꞏ Office Furniture & Equipment 68,129.62
150011 ꞏ Accumluated Depreciation-Furn. -60,000.47
150020 ꞏ Computer Equipment 62,956.03
150021 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation-Comp. -46,648.27
150040 ꞏ Land - JPI Park 736,911.00
150045 ꞏ Walgreens/Lui Park Land 141,000.00
150062 ꞏ Land - Houston Tech.Center l 798,053.89
150063 ꞏ Houston Tech Center l 2,676,862.62
150064 ꞏ Accm Deprec-Houston Tech Cntr l -2,676,862.62
150065 ꞏ Land - HTC Phase ll 697,219.00
150066 ꞏ Houston Tech Center ll 3,092,002.07
150067 ꞏ Accum.Deprec. HTC Phase l -2,743,776.33

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Nov 30, 25

150069 ꞏ Land - Bagby Park 1,318,870.15
150070 ꞏ BagbyPark 2,453,218.83
150071 ꞏ Accum.Deprec. BagbyPark -1,915,871.26
150075 ꞏ Midtown Park 2905 Travis St 3,506,306.26
150078 ꞏ Midtown Park Land-Tracts l & ll 4,416,996.74
1500783 ꞏ Accum Deprec-Works of Art -321,908.92
1500784 ꞏ Acc Depr Office Housng & Garage -2,721,107.88
1500785 ꞏ Accum Depreciation - Bagby Park -332,433.00
150078A ꞏ Midtown (Superblock) Garage 13,784.20
150078B ꞏ Midtown (Superblockj) Park 5,299,848.40
150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable As

1500781 ꞏ Acc Depre - Midtown Garage -3,581,258.77
150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable As ... 23,104,895.00

Total 150078C ꞏ Midtown Garage - Depreciable ... 19,523,636.23

150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse
1500782 ꞏ Acc Depre MIdtown Park -5,038,840.34
150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse -... 19,094,553.00

Total 150078D ꞏ Midtown Park - Depreciable As... 14,055,712.66

150078E ꞏ Land - Operations Center 1,002,054.00
150078H ꞏ Midtown Park - Depr Assc 2&3 5,540,156.38
150078I ꞏ Bagby Park - Depr Asset  (2020) 1,049,784.00
150078J ꞏ Opration Center Dep Asset 27,074,672.44

150078K ꞏ Midtown Park -Placed in Service -5,506,202.00
150079B ꞏ Works of Art - Donated 1,137,027.00
150080 ꞏ Land (Resale)

150081 ꞏ Earnest Money -15,946.09
150082 ꞏ Option Fees 5,000.00
150803 ꞏ Affordable Housing Legal 103,280.05
150804 ꞏ Affordable Housing Misc 756,345.80
150805 ꞏ AFFORD HOUS GRANTS 126,750.28
150080 ꞏ Land (Resale) - Other 34,579,600.93

Total 150080 ꞏ Land (Resale) 35,555,030.97

150080A ꞏ Land Held for Resale -10,723,654.68
150089 ꞏ Land HMAAC (Land) 1,206,150.00
150090 ꞏ HMAAC Property 918,850.00
150091 ꞏ Accum Depr HMAAC -685,309.43
150098 ꞏ Rice-Ion Garage Asset 56,900,000.00
150099 ꞏ Accum Depr - ION Parking Garage -1,801,833.00
150100 ꞏ 2800 MAIN 317,069.93
150782A ꞏ Acc Depr Midtown Park Phase 2-3 -1,101,240.09
150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets - Other -546,027.24

Total 150000 ꞏ Fixed Assets 158,379,427.23

Total Fixed Assets 158,379,427.23

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Nov 30, 25

Other Assets
180500 ꞏ Leases

180510 ꞏ Lease Receivable 2,494,714.31
180530 ꞏ Deferred Inflow -2,406,397.36

Total 180500 ꞏ Leases 88,316.95

Total Other Assets 88,316.95

TOTAL ASSETS 216,810,396.57

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 900,043.58

Other Current Liabilities
200001 ꞏ Current Liablities 783,536.14

200006 ꞏ Property Tax Liability 125,410.82
203500 ꞏ Prepaid Rental Income Liab 11,292.06
205000 ꞏ Current Loan Liabilities 4,505,000.00

25000 ꞏ Retainage Payable 3,500.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 5,428,739.02

Total Current Liabilities 6,328,782.60

Long Term Liabilities
210000 ꞏ Long Term Liabilities

210050 ꞏ Bond Payable Series 2017 32,625,000.00
210061 ꞏ Series 2017 Bond Premium 2,600,121.00
210063 ꞏ Series 2020 Bond Premium 1,256,000.00
210064 ꞏ Bonds Payable Series 2020 6,410,000.00
210065 ꞏ Bonds Payable Series 2022 19,595,000.00
210100 ꞏ Security Deposit LT 32,148.73

Total 210000 ꞏ Long Term Liabilities 62,518,269.73

210400 ꞏ ION Garage
210401 ꞏ ION Deferred Tax Increment 1,725,631.00
210402 ꞏ ION Unearned Concession Fee 1,531,015.00
210403 ꞏ ION Garage - Reversion of Rice 34,329,667.00

Total 210400 ꞏ ION Garage 37,586,313.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 100,104,582.73

Total Liabilities 106,433,365.33

Equity
1110 ꞏ Retained Earnings 114,068,327.38
Net Income -3,691,296.14

Total Equity 110,377,031.24

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 216,810,396.57

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2025

No assurance is provided no these financial statements

DRAFT



Date Num Name Memo Credit

101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020
11/19/2025 12074 Bracewell LLP 33,796.50
11/19/2025 12075 Design Workshop, Inc. Houston Midtown District Work Order#1 Project 006... 3,906.48
11/19/2025 12076 IDS Engineering Group Midtown PSA 2021 WO No 01B  Professional Servi... 4,829.29
11/19/2025 12077 Lion Heart Project 043-001 Midtown Work order 1 - 10.31.2025 8,727.50
11/19/2025 12078 OJB On Call Services - WO 1A  October 2025 32,736.25
11/19/2025 12079 Padron Design Studio L... MRA Marketing Retainer October 2025 3,750.00
11/25/2025 12080 Gauge Engineering Project 2501667-0000 Work Order No. 1 Through O... 1,745.12
11/25/2025 12081 Goode Systems & Cons... 3rd Floor Board/Conference Room- Split 3 Ways Oc... 2,433.95
11/25/2025 12082 Goode Technology Group System Support November 2025 1,375.00
11/25/2025 12083 Houston Public Works Project # 51501294  - 400 Gray St ROW 77002  11.... 562.70
11/25/2025 12084 Lion Heart Project 043-001 Midtown Work order 1 - 08.31.2025 3,622.50
11/25/2025 12085 Padron Design Studio L... MRA Marketing Retainer September 2025 3,750.00
11/25/2025 12086 Equi-Tax, Inc. 800.00
11/25/2025 12087 Flextg Financial Services CANNON/IR-C5750I NOVEMBER 2025 1,043.97
11/25/2025 ACH Reliant Energy 402 PIERCE ST - 75237953-7 NOVEMBER 2025 5,371.03
11/25/2025 ACH Reliant Energy 410  PIERCE STREET - 75237956-0 NOV 2025 4,223.12
11/25/2025 ACH G&A Partners PR 11/30/2025 102,480.18
12/02/2025 12088 Amanda Hansen Group Crisis Communications and Public Relations Retain... 15,500.00
12/02/2025 12089 Carr Riggs & Ingram, LLC FY25 Audit Final Billing 2,500.00
12/02/2025 12090 Equi-Tax, Inc. MontlyConsultation Service fee per contract Decem... 500.00
12/02/2025 12091 Midtown Parks Conserv... MRA Reimbursable Expenses for WF CC Charges ... 2,284.55
12/02/2025 12092 Midtown Scouts Square ... Contract Parking Spaces - 12 November 2025 900.00
12/02/2025 12093 Purchase Power Postage NOVEMBER 2025 300.00
12/02/2025 12094 Staples Advantage Office supplies 11.25.25 1,275.04
12/02/2025 12095 The Morton Accounting ... Sept 2025 CPA Services 26,872.46
12/02/2025 12096 THR Enterprises, Inc. Cleaning Services -October 2025 1,690.00
12/10/2025 12097 Carr Riggs & Ingram, LLC CentraLease Quarterly Fee (Sept 2025 - Nov 2025) 362.50
12/10/2025 12098 Comcast 410 SERVICE  Ste #355 to DECEMBER 29, 2025 306.91
12/10/2025 12099 Condor Express Deliver... Delivery & Delivery Return November 2025 289.15
12/10/2025 12100 Goode Systems & Cons... 5,703.30
12/10/2025 12101 Lake Management Servi... Rain Fountain Proposal 18,686.56
12/10/2025 12102 Padron Design Studio L... MRA Marketing Retainer November 2025 3,750.00
12/10/2025 12103 Pitney Bowes Global Fin... LEASE Dec 30, 2025 - March 29, 2026 163.20
12/10/2025 12104 Walter P. Moore 29,044.00
12/10/2025 12105 Wulfe & Co. Consulting for Bagby Park and Midown Park -Nove... 3,400.00
12/11/2025 ACH G&A Partners PR 12/15/2025 129,770.73
12/12/2025 ACH AT&T 550010 690.67

Total 101003 ꞏ Texas Capital Operating x 6020 459,142.66

TOTAL 459,142.66

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Operating Disbursements

As of December 15, 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



Date Num Name Memo Credit

104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts
104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028
11/19/2025 5127 Bracewell LLP Third Ward Acquisitions/Affordable Housing Legal - T... 17,793.75
11/19/2025 5128 CCPPI MIdtown Affordable Housing Plan Grant September 2... 119,083.33
11/19/2025 5129 TransTeQ 62,731.55
11/25/2025 5130 Abacas Plumbing 3246 Beulah Street Repairs 4,286.00
11/25/2025 5131 American Fence Compa... 773.00
11/25/2025 5132 Roberta F. Burroughs &  ... Project:  Midtown Affordable Housing Plan - Impl Srv... 8,000.00
11/25/2025 5133 Jasmine Ruth Coleman ... Appraisal Report 3131 Emancipation Ave 9,300.00
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 26.77
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 32.82
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 26.01
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 25.62
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 30.57
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 30.20
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 27.28
11/25/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 24.35
12/01/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 1,041.92
12/01/2025 ACH City of Houston - Water 155065 7,611.72
12/02/2025 5134 American Fence Compa... 358.40
12/10/2025 5135 American Fence Compa... 1,371.80
12/10/2025 5136 Vergel Gay & Associates... Project Mgt Sevices Emanicipation Bld Tenant Impr ... 1,049.00

Total 104024 ꞏ Texas Capital AH Ops x 6028 233,748.38

Total 104000 ꞏ Affordable Housing Accounts 233,748.38

TOTAL 233,748.38

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Affordable Housing Disbursements

As of December 15, 2025

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

DRAFT



INVESTMENT 
REPORT FOR 

QUARTER ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2026 

DRAFT



January 22, 2026 

Board of Directors 
Midtown Redevelopment Authority 
410 Pierce, Suite 355 
Houston, Texas 77002 

Re: Investment Report – Quarter Ending December 31, 2025 

Dear Board of Directors: 

In my capacity as Investment Officer and in compliance with Article III, 
Section 3.03 and Article IV, Section 4.06 of the Investment Policy of the District, 
please find attached the 2nd Quarter Fiscal Year 2026 Investment Report.   

These reports reflect compliance of the Investment Policies of the District, 
and in accordance with the Investment provisions of the Public Funds 
Investment Act.  The enclosed report is presented to the Board of Directors for 
review and approval. 

Kindest regards,   

Matt Thibodeaux 
Executive Director 

CC: Carr, Riggs & Ingram (CRI)  

DRAFT



January 22, 2026 

Board of Directors 
Matt Thibodeaux, Executive Director 
Midtown Redevelopment Authority 
410 Pierce Street, Suite 355 
Houston, Texas 77002 

Re: Investment Report – Quarter Ending December 31, 2025 

Dear Board of Directors: 

I have prepared the Quarterly Investment Report for the 2nd Quarter FY2026 in my 
capacity as Midtown District CPA.  This report is presented in accordance with Article III, 
Section 3.03 and Article IV, Section 4.06 of the Investment Policy of the District.    

The average yield rate on all investment accounts this quarter is 4.01992% with the highest 
yield from the Logic accounts at 4.09% on average.  The amount of interest earned from 
investment accounts for the quarter was $361,290.  The report reflects the compliance of your 
investment portfolio with the Investment Policies of the District and is in accordance with the 
Investment provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act. 

This report is presented to the Board of Directors for review and approval. 

Respectfully,  

Melissa Morton, CPA 
Midtown District CPA 

CC: Carr, Riggs & Ingram (CRI) 

DRAFT



DEPOSITS
WITHDRAWALS/TRA

NSFERS
1st Qtr 2nd Qtr

QUARTER TO DATE
TOTAL

OPERATING FUNDS 21,851,386.27 1,530,392.17 2,740,000.00 20,641,778.44 248,954.44 217,387.87 466,342.31

LOGIC Operating 21,255,473.36 209,667.92        1,500,000.00     19,965,141.28   241,454.79  209,667.92   451,122.71        4.09%

TexSTAR Operating 8,066.15 81.08 8,147.23            86.12           81.08            167.20 3.97%

Texas Capital MM 587,846.76 1,320,643.17     1,240,000.00     668,489.93        7,413.53      7,638.87       15,052.40          3.98%

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 10,534,428.14 4,153,837.83     500,000.00        14,188,265.97   119,334.71  131,085.74   250,420.45        

TexSTAR Affordable Housing 2,337.01 23.44 2,360.45            24.82           23.44            48.26 3.97%

LOGIC Affordable Housing 9,760,409.93 4,125,255.33     - 13,885,665.26   113,177.58  125,255.33   238,432.91        4.09%

Texas Capital AH MM 771,681.20 28,559.06          500,000.00        300,240.26        6,132.31      5,806.97       11,939.28          3.98%

PLEDGE REVENUE 2,098,283.12 12,726.99          - 2,111,010.11     6,308.75      12,726.99     19,035.74          

677 Fund U.S. Treasury Money Mk 2,098,283.12 12,726.99          - 2,111,010.11     6,308.75      12,726.99     19,035.74          0.00%

DEBT SERVICE FUND 6,282,614.21 - - 6,282,614.21     - - - 

Debit Service 2896 6,282,614.21 - - 6,282,614.21     - - - 0.00%

RESERVE FUND 6,980,045.78 70,153.76          - 7,050,199.54 76,609.30    - 76,609.30          

TexSTAR Debit Service Money Mk 6,980,045.78 70,153.76          - 7,050,199.54     76,609.30    76,609.30          3.97%

4,066.02 36.00 - 4,102.02 38.08           36.00            74.08

4,066.02 36.00 - 4,102.02            38.08           36.00            74.08 0.00%

5,119.43 53.05 - 5,172.48 145.99         53.05            199.04

5,119.43 53.05 - 5,172.48            145.99         53.05            199.04 4.09%

47,755,942.97 5,767,199.80     3,240,009.99     50,283,142.77 451,391.27  361,289.65   812,680.92        

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT REPORT

QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 2025

ACCOUNT NAME / FUND QTR BEGINNING BOOK  VALUE

TRANSACTIONS
ENDING 
BOOK
VALUE

INTEREST - By Qtr FY 2026
QTRLY AVG 
INTEREST 

YIELD RATE

AUSTIN MAINTENANCE FUND

677 Fund U.S. Treasury Money Mk

PROJECT FUND 

LOGIC 2017 Project

REPORT GRAND TOTAL

DRAFT



MMIDTOWN 
CAPITAL   

IMPROVEMENTS 

DRAFT



   Midtown Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ #2 Board Meeting January 29, 2026 
Marlon Marshall 

Capital Improvements Program 

Maintenance and Operation of Authority Parks, Facilities and Street Improvements 

- Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Maintenance Services at Midtown Park and
Plaza and Bagby Park

o Current Agreement for Maintenance Services is between Midtown Parks Conservancy
and Lawn Management Company LLC

o Services generally include landscape maintenance and general cleanup services at MRA
owned parks, Midtown Park & Plaza and Bagby Park

o Midtown Parks Conservancy held public procurement process in September 2025
o Evaluation Committee selected contractor through competitive procurement process and

identified as the highest-ranked proposer.
o Annual cost of services - $68,176.08 ($5,681.34/month)
o Initial term through December 31, 2027 with option to renew for two additional one-year

periods
- Midtown Planting Improvements Phase 1 (Bagby Street, Bagby Park and Midtown Park) –

Construction Contract Award
o Midtown Parks Conservancy held public procurement process in March 2025
o Project includes landscape replacement at Midtown Park, Bagby Park, and Bagby Street

streetscape (St Joseph Parkway to Tuam Street)
o Scope of work includes site preparation, installation of new plant material (shrubs,

perennials, groundcover, trees), installation of aggregate surfacing (black star or
decomposed granite), and one-year maintenance period.

o Request authorization for the budget allocated for T-0207 – Operating of Zone & Project
Facilities to enter into an agreement with the contractor selected through competitive
procurement process and identified as the responsible bidder whose bid is the lowest in
price, conforms to terms and conditions of procurements, and results in the most
advantageous bid to owner (MRA). (bid tab attached)

o Funds authorized will cover costs associated with landscape replacement and owner
contingency to address miscellaneous project expenditures necessary for successful
project delivery.

- Main Street Planting Improvements – Construction Contract Award
o Midtown Parks Conservancy held public procurement process in September 2025
o Project includes landscape replacement along Main Street streetscape and rail

esplanade (Gray Street to Wheeler Avenue)
o Scope of work includes site preparation, installation of new plant material (shrubs,

perennials, groundcover, trees), and one-year maintenance period.
o Request authorization for the budget allocated for T-0207 – Operating of Zone & Project

Facilities to enter into an agreement with the contractor selected through competitive
procurement process and identified as the responsible bidder whose bid is the lowest in
price, conforms to terms and conditions of procurements, and results in the most
advantageous bid to owner (MRA). (bid tab attached)

o Funds authorized will cover costs associated with landscape replacement and owner
contingency to address miscellaneous project expenditures necessary for successful
project delivery.

FIFA World Cup 206 

- FIFA World Cup Sustainability Committee selected Midtown as World Cup Green Corridor project
showcase site for sustainability demonstration of innovation and nature-based resilience.

- Midtown partnering with World Cup Sustainability Committee on innovation and resiliency
installations (temporary and permanent) at demonstration sites in Midtown (Wheeler Transit
Station/Ion District, McGowen Station/Midtown Park, HCC/Ensemble Rail Station)

DRAFT



   Midtown Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ #2 Board Meeting January 29, 2026 
Marlon Marshall 

- In November 2025, MRA Board authorized OJB to continue work on conceptual design and
budget development for demonstration sites

- Current efforts focus on schematic design of interventions at Ensemble/HCC Rail Station and
McGowen Rail Station including Midtown Park and Plaza and the streetscape and pedestrian
experience on McGowen between Main Street and Bagby Street.

- Request authorization for the budget allocated for T-0221- Midtown Park and T-0225 – Mobility &
Pedestrian Improvements to enter into work order with OJB for landscape architecture design
services

- Funds authorized will cover costs associated with landscape architecture design phase services
for construction plans and programmatic interventions along Main Street between Ensemble/HCC
METRO Station and McGowen METRO Station including Midtown Park and Plaza and the
streetscape and pedestrian experience on McGowen between Main Street and Bagby Street and
other connecting corridors.

Street Overlay and Sidewalk Program 

- Projects will include comprehensive mill and asphalt overlay to improve the road surface
condition and sidewalks constructed to generally 5 feet width on local streets and 6 feet width on
major thoroughfares.

- Project locations based on the City’s Pavement Condition Index (PCI) ratings and Midtown
Sidewalk Conditions Assessment.

- Current phase includes segments on:
o Isabella and Truxillo Streets
o Caroline and Cleburne Streets
o Chenevert, Jackson, and Hadley Street

- Stakeholder engagement meetings will begin in late February/March

Mobility & Pedestrian Improvements 

- In November 2025, Board approved work order with ARUP to provide a comprehensive review of
existing pedestrian lighting conditions and planning for future lighting improvements focused on
enhancing perceived safety at night.

- Partnership project is funded by Midtown Redevelopment Authority and Midtown Management
District

- ARUP staff is scheduled to begin Existing Lighting Assessment and Nighttime Vulnerability
Assessment during week of February 2 – 6.

- Stakeholder Engagement Nighttime Walk scheduled to be held on February 24 from 6:00 PM – 9:00
PM and will provide residents and businesses an opportunity to share feedback and help inform
future lighting recommendations.

DRAFT



AGREEMENT FOR 
MAINTENANCE FOR 
MIDTOWN PARK & 

BAGBY PARK

DRAFT



ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 

This Assignment Agreement (this “Assignment Agreement”), dated effective as of 
, 2026 (the “Assignment Effective Date”), is entered 

into by and between Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation d/b/a Midtown 
Parks Conservancy, a Texas nonprofit corporation (the “Assignor”), and Midtown 
Redevelopment Authority, a public non-profit local government corporation (the “Assignee” or 
the “Authority”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in that certain Agreement for Maintenance Services, dated as of January 1, 2026 (the 
“Maintenance Services Agreement”), by and between Lawn Management Company LLC 
(“LMC”) and the Assignor, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

WHEREAS, the Assignor wishes to transfer and assign to the Authority all of Assignor’s 
rights and responsibilities related to the Maintenance Services Agreement, and the Authority is 
willing to assume such rights and responsibilities of the Assignor under the Maintenance Services 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, such transfers and assignments are expressly permitted by the Maintenance 
Services Agreement in Section 15, provided that the Assignor delivers written notice thereof to 
LMC ten days before the Assignment Effective Date; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual conveyances, agreement and benefits 
to both parties hereto, the Assignor and the Assignee  hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment and Assumption.  The Assignor hereby transfers and assigns to the Authority,
and the Authority hereby assumes and agrees to perform all obligations, duties, liabilities
and commitments of the Assignor under the Maintenance Services Agreement.

2. Governing Law; Binding Effect.  This Assignment Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

3. Notice.  In conjunction with its approval and execution of this Assignment Agreement, the
Assignor has delivered to LMC a written notice of its intention to enter into this
Assignment Agreement pursuant to the requirements of Section 15 of the Maintenance
Services Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

4. Counterparts.  This Assignment Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy of this Assignment Agreement, and
all of which, when taken together, shall be deemed to constitute one and the same
agreement. Delivery of such counterparts by electronic mail shall be deemed effective as
manual delivery.

DRAFT



Signature Page 
Assignment Agreement – MPC & MRA 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignee and Assignor have executed this Assignment 
Agreement to be made effective as of the Assignment Effective Date.  

ASSIGNEE: 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By: _________________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 

ASSIGNOR: 

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A 
MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY 

By: _________________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 

DRAFT



A-1

Exhibit A 
Maintenance Services Agreement 

[Attached]DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



B-1

Exhibit B 
Notice of Assignment 

[Attached] DRAFT



MIDTOWN PLANTING  
IMPROVEMENTSrd

DRAFT



Midtown Planting Improvements 
Bid Summary
Midtown Parks Conservancy
Mar-25

Landecor HLS Landscape Art
Project Area

Bagby Street $571,578.71 $616,637.00 $507,152.04

Bagby Park $184,683.39 $115,458.00 $110,330.64

Midtown Park $442,388.19 $433,825.00 $395,858.04

Grand Total $1,198,650.29 $1,165,920.00 $1,013,340.72

DRAFT



MMAIN STREET 
PLANTING 

IMPROVEMENTS

DRAFT



Main Street Planting Improvements 
Bid Summary
Midtown Parks Conservancy
Sep-25

SMC Landscape Services TWL Construction Landscape Art

Grand Total $805,866.62 $1,216,069.20 $967,574.88

DRAFT



FIFA WORLD CUP 2026R

DRAFT



Mr. Marlon Marshall 
Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority 
410 Pierce St., Suite 355 
Houston, TX  77002 

Houston 
T E X A S

Boston 
M A S S A C H U S E T T S  

San Diego 
C A L I F O R N I A

Philadelphia 
P E N N S Y L V A N I A

Dallas 
T E X A S  

Denver 
C O L O R A D O

2850 Clinton Drive 
Suite 302 
Houston, TX 77020 
713.529.9919 

Proposal for Landscape Architecture Consulting Services 
Midtown Houston – FIFA World Cup 2026 Green Corridor 

Dear Marlon, 

Thank you for the opportunity to propose landscape architectural services for the Midtown portion of the 
FIFA World Cup 2026 Green Corridor project. This is of special interest to OJB because of the opportunity 
to continue working together. We are excited to work with the your team to show how landscape can 
enhance the sustainability, resilience, and activation practices Midtown Houston is aiming to achieve and 
capitalize on the opportunity of hosting the World Cup in Houston.   

Provided that you find our proposal acceptable, this letter, once executed by both parties, along with the 
Scope & Fee Proposal, attached as Exhibit A, the Limit of Work, attached as Exhibit B, and the Standard 
Terms & Conditions, attached as Exhibit C, shall be the Agreement entered into by and between Midtown 
Redevelopment Authority “Client” and The Office of James Burnett, Inc. (dba OJB Landscape Architecture) 
(“OJB” or “Landscape Architect”), effective as of 24 January 2026. In the event that this Agreement is not 
fully executed by the parties, it shall nonetheless be effective and binding on Client and OJB provided that 
Client has received a copy of this Agreement and OJB has commenced performing Services under this 
Agreement. 

Approved and accepted by: 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 
THE OFFICE OF JAMES BURNETT, INC. 
dba OJB LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

CLIENT 
MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Name Chip Trageser Name 

Title Partner Title 

Date 23 January 2026 Date 

Copy:     Tara Green, Principal, Public Realm Strategies 

This Agreement incorporates the following Exhibits: 

Exhibit A – Scope and Fee Proposal 
Exhibit B – Limit of Work Diagram 
Exhibit C - Standard Terms & Conditions 

DRAFT



FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope and fee proposal for landscape architecture consult ing services 

The Office of James Burnett, Inc. dba OJB Landscape Architecture (“Landscape Architect” or “OJB”) is 
pleased to submit this Proposal for Landscape Architecture consulting services for: World Cup 2026 Green 
Corridor Streetscape Enhancements for Midtown Houston Redevelopment Authority, Houston, TX. 

A. STREETSCAPE ENHANCEMENTS
Midtown Houston District covers approximately 725 acres in Houston, TX. The Midtown Redevelopment
Authority works with Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2 to drive the revitalization of Midtown
Houston. The district includes dining, retail, residential, and parks. The project site focuses on
interventions along Main Street between Ensemble/HCC Metro Station, and McGowen Metro Station. It
includes Midtown Park and Midtown Plaza and the streetscape and pedestrian experience on McGowen
between Main Street and Bagby Street.

1.1 The project budget is as follows:

a. Total project budget is unknown.
b. Estimated total cost of construction is unknown.

1.2 The project’s phasing is as follows: 

a. The project’s permitting and construction strategy is unknown.

1.3 Elements of the project include: 

a. Design and Activation Interventions at (4) Four METRO rail stations
b. Design and Activation Interventions at (4) Four Streetscapes

i. Main Street (McGowen Station to Ensemble Station)
ii. McGowen Street (Main Street to Bagby Street)
iii. Anita Street (Main Street to Travis Street)
iv. Holman Street (Main Street to Travis Street)

c. Midtown Park

i. Activation Scope Only

d. Midtown Plaza

i. Lawn area redesign
ii. Shade Structure
iii. Art Elements
iv. Activation
v. Landscaping

1.4 The scope of this proposal excludes: 

a. Design and documentation of open spaces over structure
b. Interactive water feature design and engineering
c. Design of art, interpretive and experiential design elements
d. Environmental graphics or signage design
e. Irrigation design
f. Telecommunications, Security, Wireless or Audiovisual Design
g. Waterproofing design
h. Audio visual and telecom systems design
i. Grading documentation
j. Subsurface drainage design

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 3 of 13 

k. Structural Engineering of site elements 
l. Mechanical, Electrical or Plumbing Engineering of site elements 
m. Geotechnical Engineering 
n. Environmental Engineering 
o. Traffic Engineering & Signalization  
p. Hazardous Material Abatement 
q. Lighting photometric studies 
r. Preparation of Cost Estimates 
s. Professional photography or videography 
t. Scope within right of way development and permitting 
u. Site surveying 
v. Tree Survey or Health Assessment 
w. Professional renderings or animations 
x. In-house renderings after the conclusion of Design Development 
y. Detailed wind studies or analysis 
z. Sustainability certifications, including LEED, SITES, WELL, Living Building Challenge or Envision 
aa. Revit/BIM modeling and documentation 
bb. Entitlements 

B. PROJECT TEAM 

1.1 Client: Midtown Redevelopment Authority  

1.2 Prime Consultant: OJB Landscape Architecture 

1.3 The Prime Consultant will coordinate with District sub-consultants and contractors provided by 

Client. 

C. SCOPE OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 

1. BASIC SERVICES  

a. The Landscape Architect’s Basic Services and OJB Public Realm Strategies Basic Services consist of 
those described in herein and include specific consultant services as outlined in “B. Project Team”. 
Services not set forth herein and consultants not identified in “B. Project Team” are Additional 
Services. 

b. OJB Public Realm Strategies shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Client 
and the Client’s consultants.  OJB Public Realm Strategies shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy 
and completeness of services and information furnished by the Client and/or the Client’s 
consultants. The OJB Public Realm Strategies shall provide prompt written notice to the Client if 
OJB Public Realm Strategies becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such 
services or information. 

c. The Landscape Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Client 
and the Client’s consultants. The Landscape Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and 
completeness of services and information furnished by the Client and the Client’s consultants. The 
Landscape Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the Client if the Landscape Architect 
becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such services or information. 

d. As soon as is practical after the date of this Agreement, the Landscape Architect shall submit for 
the Client’s approval a schedule for the performance of the Landscape Architect’s services. The 
schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the commencement of construction and for 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 4 of 13 

the Substantial Completion of the Work. The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time 
required for Client’s review, for the performance of the Client’s consultants, and for the approval 
of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the project. Once approved by the Client, 
time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the 
Landscape Architect or Client. With the Client’s approval, Landscape Architect shall adjust the 
schedule, if necessary, as the Project proceeds until the commencement of construction. 

e. The Landscape Architect shall not be responsible for a Client’s directive or substitution made 
without the Landscape Architect’s approval. 

f. The Landscape Architect shall, at appropriate times, contact the governmental Authorities Having 
Jurisdiction (AHJ) required to approve the Construction Documents and the entities providing 
utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the Landscape Architect shall respond to 
applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such entities 
providing utility services. 

g. The Prime Consultant shall be responsible for filing documents required for the approval of 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the project. Refer to “Permitting”, for specific 
scope of services provided. Cost of permitting submittals are the responsibility of the Client. 

h. The Landscape Architect will coordinate with Prime Consultant or Architect’s BIM model if 
applicable. Project documents shall be provided to Client in AutoCAD. 

D. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

1. DOCUMENTATION PHASE (CONCURRENT WITH REALM STRATEGIES SERVICES) 

1.1 Scope 

a. Based on the Client’s approval of the Design documents, and on the Client’s authorization of any 
adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Landscape 
Architect shall prepare Construction Documents for the Client’s approval.  

b. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the further development of the 
approved Design documents and shall consist of Drawings and Specifications setting forth in detail 
the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the construction of the 
Work.  

c. The Construction Documents will be prepared from open-source data, publicly available to OJB.  
No certified topography, jurisdictional or utility survey’s will be provided to OJB for this scope of 
work.  Development of these documents will articulate the basis of design intent only with the 
installing contractor responsible for verifying all conditions in the field prior to commencement of 
installation. 

d. The Client and Landscape Architect acknowledge that to construct the Work, the Contractor will 
provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar 
submittals, which the Landscape Architect will review in accordance with Task 6. 

e. Applicable drawings will be signed and sealed by registered professionals in the state of Texas. 
f. The Landscape Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents the design 

requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the project.  
g. The Landscape Architect will review and comment on the Opinion of Probable Cost of the Work 

prepared by contractor. 
h. The Landscape Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner 

of any adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required identified 
under the Cost of the Work section and request the Owner’s approval. 

i. The Landscape Architect shall coordinate the Construction Document phase efforts of consultants 
engaged as part of this agreement. 

j. Irrigation will be design-build implemented by the contractor. 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 5 of 13 

1.2 Duration 

a. Four (4) Weeks 

1.3 Deliverables 

a. Issue for Permit plans, including: 

i. Site Construction Plans for improvements on natural grade 
ii. Site Sections 
iii. Construction Details for improvements on natural grade       
iv. Soil Plans 
v. Planting Plans for improvements on natural grade 
vi. Planting Plans for improvements over structure 
vii. Planting Details 

1.4 Meetings 

a. Two (2) remote meetings with the client to present progress. 

2. OJB PUBLIC REALM STRATEGIES (CONCURRENT WITH DOCUMENTATION AND 
CONSTRUCTION PHASES) 

2.1 Scope  

a. Programming & Activation 

i. Review design plans from an operations and activation perspective to ensure operational 
efficiency and meeting activation goals 

ii. Meet with potential Program Partners to build relationships to offset programming and 
activation expenses. 

b. Operations & Staffing 

i. Create job descriptions and hiring timeline for proposed World Cup staff. 

c. Estimated Budget & Revenue Recommendations 

i. Finalize the World Cup event budget forecast and revenue recommendations 

2.2 Duration 

a. Sixteen (16) weeks of deliverables  
b. Develop and finalize World Cup related programming and activation calendar. 
c. Develop and finalize World Cup related estimated budgets. 
d. Develop and finalize World Cup related network of Program Partners and Food Truck Owners. 

2.3 Meetings 

a. Concurrent with Client and Design Team schedules. 

3. PERMITTING AND CLIENT COORDINATION (CONCURRENT WITH DESIGN AND PRS PHASES) 

3.1 Scope 

a. The Landscape Architect shall submit permit drawings to the Prime Consultant, who will submit to 
the appropriate AHJ. 

b. The Landscape Architect shall revise “Issue for Permit” documents as may be required to respond 
to review cycle comments from the AHJ’s plan review process. 

c. The Landscape Architect shall submit the “Issue for Bidding” plans to the Contractor and request 
the Client’s approval. 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 6 of 13 

d. The Landscape Architect shall manage and coordinate the Permit phase efforts of OJB’s above-
referenced consultant team. 

e. The Landscape Architect shall support the client to engage and organize third party entities 
execute work in support of the Green Corridor. 

i. Limit of work includes: 

o Attending client organized meetings with Third Party Organizations and Vendors 
o Sharing Documentation Phase Updates with Client and Third Party Organizations and 

Vendors 
o OJB will not be responsible for scheduling or directing implementation of Third Party 

Organizations and Vendors 

3.2 Duration 

a. Four (4) weeks 

3.3 Deliverables 

a. Plan check response Addendums 
b. Issue for Bidding plans and specifications 

3.4 Meetings 

a. Up to one (1) review cycle meetings with Plan Reviewers 

4. CONSTRUCTION/ IMPLEMENTATION PHASE 

4.1 Scope 

a. General  

i. The Landscape Architect shall advise and consult with the Prime Consultant and Client during 
the Construction Phase services. The Landscape Architect shall have authority to act on behalf 
of the Client only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The Landscape Architect shall not 
have control over, charge of, or responsibility for construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the 
Work, nor shall the Landscape Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform 
the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Landscape 
Architect shall be responsible for the Landscape Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but 
shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of 
the Construction Manager or of any other persons or entities performing portions of the 
Work. 

b. Evaluations of the Work  

i. The Landscape Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
construction to become familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work 
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a 
manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. However, the Landscape Architect shall not be required to make 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the work. 
Based on site visits, the Landscape Architect shall keep the Client reasonably informed about 
the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Client (1) 
known deviations from the Contract Documents and from the most recent construction 
schedule submitted by the Construction Manager, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed 
in the Work. 

ii. The Landscape Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the 
Contract Documents.  

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 7 of 13 

4.2 Submittals  

a. The Landscape Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not 
unreasonably delay or withhold approval. The Landscape Architect’s action in reviewing submittals 
shall be taken in accordance with the time limits specified in the Owner’s Contract for 
Construction.  

b. In accordance with the Landscape Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Landscape 
Architecture shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon the submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for 
conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. 
Review of such submittals is not to determine the accuracy and completeness of other information 
such as dimensions, quantities, installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are 
the Contractor’s responsibility. The Landscape Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of 
safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Landscape Architect, of any 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Landscape Architect’s 
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a 
component. 

c. If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design 
services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the 
Landscape Architect shall specify the appropriate performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy. The Landscape Architect shall review shop drawings and other submittals 
related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the Contractor 
that bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Landscape Architect. The 
Landscape Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and completeness of 
the services, certifications and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals. 

d. The Landscape Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract 
Documents. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement 
that indicates the specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the 
clarification requested. The Landscape Architect’s response to such request shall be made in 
writing within the time limits specified in the Client’s Contract for Construction. If appropriate, the 
Landscape Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental drawings and specifications in response 
to requests for information. 

e. The Landscape Architect shall keep a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the 
Construction Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents' requirements. 

4.3 Changes in the Work  

a. With Client approval, the Landscape Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work 
consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the 
Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time. 

b. The Landscape Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the work. 

4.4 Project Completion 

a. The Landscape Architect’s inspections shall be coordinated with the Client to verify compliance of 
the Work with the requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and 
completeness of the list submitted by the Construction Manager of Work to be completed or 
corrected. 

b. The Landscape Architect shall review the Operations and Maintenance package submitted by the 
Construction Manager and confirm its compliance with the specifications. 

4.5 Duration  

a. Fourteen (14) weeks 

4.6 Deliverables 

a. Three (3) Field Observation reports 
b. One (1) Final Punch List 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 8 of 13 

4.7 Meetings 

a. Three (3) site observation trips by one (1) staff member for one (1) day each 
b. One (1) Final Punch List site walk by one (1) staff member for one (1) day 
c. Four (4) client check ins 

E. COMPENSATION & PAYMENTS 

1. COMPENSATION FOR THE SERVICES 

2. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Services beyond Landscape Architect's Basic Services may be provided if confirmed in writing. 
Additional services may include but are not limited to:  

a. Extension to the project schedule 
b. Additional deliverables beyond what is defined in the Scope 
c. Revisions and changes to approved drawings. 
d. Design Development, Construction Documentation, Permitting, Bidding and Construction 

Observation. 
e. Providing public presentations and political processing for governmental approvals. 
f. Providing master plan codes, covenants and regulations controlling all future work. 
g. Presentation models, drawings, animations and professional renderings are not expressly provided 

for in this Proposal. 
h. Additional Subconsultants required by the project and approved by the Client. 

 

 

 

 

 

PHASE DURATION MEETINGS OJB FEE 

Documentation Phase (Concurrent) 4 weeks 2 meeting $30,000 

Public Realm Services (Concurrent) 18 weeks 2 meeting $15,000 

Permitting/ Coordination (Concurrent) 8 weeks 2 meeting $10,000 (Hourly/ NTE) 

Construction/ Implementation Phase 14 weeks 4 meetings $15,000 (Hourly/ NTE) 

Estimated Reimbursable Expenses *per terms   

TOTAL 18 weeks 8 meetings $70,000 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 9 of 13 

3. HOURLY RATES 

The Hourly Labor Billing Rates listed below are effective through December 31, 2026, and may be 
adjusted annually thereafter to compensate for any increases in OJB’s labor rates.  

 

4. PAYMENTS 

Invoices are payable net 30 days from the date of invoice, pursuant to Paragraph 1 of OJB’s 
Standard Terms & Conditions, attached as Exhibit C to the Agreement. 

Remit payments to: 

The Office of James Burnett, Inc. 
2850 Clinton Drive, Suite 302 
Houston, TX 77020 

5. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

a. Cost of copies of drawings, specifications, reports and cost estimates; xerography and 
photographic reproduction of drawings and other documents furnished or prepared in connection 
with this contract's work. 

b. Cost of commercial carrier and public transportation, lodging, car rental and parking, sustenance 
and out-of-pocket expenses. Private automobile travel at the IRS standard mileage rate. Long-
distance trips subject to client approval. Cost of postage and shipping expenses other than first 
class mail.  Electronic data processing, with approval of Client.   

c. Cost of models, special renderings, promotional photography, special process printing, special 
equipment, special printed reports or publications, maps and documents. 

d. Fees for additional special consultants retained with the prior approval of Client.  

President $395 

Partner $325 

Public Realm Strategies Principal $300 

Managing Principal $300 

Principal $280 

Director $260 

Associate Director $245 

Senior Associate $230 

Associate $210 

Project Designer $195 

Designer $180 

Architectural Assistant $135 

Clerical $100 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT B 
Limit of  Work Diagram 

  

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT C 

The Off ice of James Burnett,  Inc.  
Standard Terms and Conditions

DRAFT



 

 

 
  

Mr. Marlon Marshall 
Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority 
410 Pierce St., Suite 355 
Houston, TX  77002 

Houston 
T E X A S  
 
Boston 
M A S S A C H U S E T T S  

San Diego 
C A L I F O R N I A  
 
Philadelphia 
P E N N S Y L V A N I A  
 
Dallas 
T E X A S  
 

Denver 
C O L O R A D O  

2850 Clinton Drive  
Suite 302 
Houston, TX 77020 
713.529.9919 

The following Terms and Conditions are hereby 
incorporated by reference in the letter, proposal, or 
agreement (collectively, the “Agreement”) to which they 
are attached.  As used herein, the term “Client” refers to 
the individuals or entities described as such in the 
Agreement. As used herein the term “OJB” refers to The 
Office of James Burnett, Inc. The scope of services and 
compensation of OJB are set forth in Exhibit A to the 
Agreement. 

1. PAYMENTS are due within 30 days of receipt of invoices. 
Invoices unpaid after 30 days shall bear interest at two 
points per annum above the prime rate as established by 
OJB’s bank, and OJB shall be entitled to reimbursement of 
all collection costs, including legal fees. OJB shall also be 
entitled to suspend services if payment is overdue. OJB’s 
compensation as described in Exhibit A to the Agreement 
shall be equitably adjusted if OJB’s services are suspended, 
delayed, extended, or otherwise materially changed due to 
causes outside of OJB’s control. If Client reasonably 
disputes any portion of an invoice, Client must pay 
undisputed portion of the invoice in accordance with the 
terms and conditions herein and submit a written claim to 
OJB for the disputed amount. All claims disputing an 
invoice must be submitted to OJB within three (3) months 
of invoice date. Client waives the right to dispute any 
charges not disputed within the timeframe set forth above. 
In the event that the dispute is resolved against Client in 
accordance with the procedures hereunder, Client shall 
pay such amounts plus interest at the rate of two points 
per annum above the prime rate as established by OJB’s 
bank. Client shall not withhold amounts from OJB’s 
compensation on account of allegedly negligent acts, 
errors or omissions but shall instead pursue any such claim 
as set forth in Section 6 (Dispute Resolution).  

2. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  The Client shall pay OJB at 
hourly rates of its own personnel set forth in Exhibit A to 
the Agreement, and the amount billed to OJB by its 
engineers and other consultants, for services performed at 
the Client’s request (subject to OJB’s agreement) which are 
outside of the scope of services described in Exhibit A to 
the Agreement, including without limitation services in 
connection with changes made at the Client’s request 
which are inconsistent with prior approvals by the Client, 
or a material change in the Project including, but not 
limited to, size, quality, complexity, the Client’s schedule 
or budget  for Work, or procurement or delivery method. 

3. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES. The Client shall reimburse 
OJB at OJB’s actual cost for (i) printing and duplication; (ii) 
delivery charges; (iii) travel in connection with the Project; 
(iv) the fees of consultants engaged by OJB at the Client’s 
request other than those included in Exhibit A to the 
Agreement as a basic service; (v) renderings and models 
requested by Client if not included as a basic service in 
Exhibit A to the Agreement; (vi) expenses of additional 
insurance coverage or limits requested by Client in excess 
of that normally carried by OJB and as set forth in Section 
13, and (vii.) other reimbursable expenses, if any, 
identified in Exhibit A to the Agreement.  

4. TERMINATION. The Agreement may be terminated by 
either party in the case of material breach by the other, 
and Client may terminate the agreement for convenience 
upon 7 days’ written notice. In case of termination for 
cause or convenience, the Client shall pay OJB for services 
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the 
date of termination plus Termination Expenses which shall 
be defined as OJB’s expenses directly attributable to 
termination. 

5. LIABILITY OF PARTIES. Neither party shall be liable to the 
other for any indirect, special, or consequential damages.  
Under no circumstances shall any individual person who is 
an Officer, Director, Shareholder, Employee or Agent of 
OJB, or any affiliate, successor, or assign of OJB, have any 
personal liability for any term, covenant, agreement or 
undertaking pursuant to the Agreement (express or 
implied), all such personal liability being expressly waived. 
OJB’s liability to the Client shall in no event exceed the 
available proceeds under OJB’s applicable insurance 
policy.  Any claim against OJB for a latent design defect 
must be brought within five (5) years of substantial 
completion. 

6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The Client and OJB agree that all 
disputes between them arising out of or relating to the 
Agreement that cannot be resolved through good faith 
negotiations shall be submitted to non-binding mediation 
in Harris County, Texas under the American Arbitration 
Association’s (“AAA”) Construction Industry Mediation 
Rules then applying, or such other mediation procedures 
as the parties may agree.  Disputes not resolved by 
mediation shall be finally decided by binding arbitration in 
Harris County, Texas by a single arbitrator under the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the AAA then 
applying. No arbitration arising out of or related to the 
Agreement shall include, by consolidation, joinder or in 
any other manner, an additional person or entity not a 
party to the Agreement, except by written consent of the 
Client, OJB, and any person or entity sought to be joined. 

7. DOCUMENTS. Drawings, specifications, and other 
documents produced by OJB are instruments of service, 
and the originals thereof and the copyright therein shall 
remain the property of OJB. OJB shall furnish copies of 
such documents in PDF format to the Client, which the 
Client may use for completion or in connection with the 
Project, subject to compliance by the Client with its 
payment obligations as provided in the Agreement. The 
Client shall release, hold harmless, indemnify and defend 
OJB for any claim arising from the use of such documents 
without OJB’s involvement.  This Section shall survive 
termination of the Agreement. Any 3D models provided to 
Client for the Project are intended for visual reference only 
and shall not be relied upon for any other purpose, 
including but not limited to, construction, fabrication, and 
cost-estimating take-offs.  To the extent there is any 
conflict between information contained in, or generated 
by electronic files or models and OJB’s pdf drawings and 
specifications, the latter documents will prevail.  

8. ESTIMATES. Since OJB has no control over construction 
costs or contractors’ prices, any cost estimates are made 
or reviewed by OJB on the basis of OJB’s experience and 
judgment as a design professional, but OJB cannot and 
does not guarantee that contractors’ proposals, bids, or 
costs will not vary from such estimates. 

9. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES. The Client shall furnish in a 
timely manner such legal, accounting, and insurance 
counseling services as may be required for the project and 
such surveys, geotechnical investigations, and information 
relating to existing conditions at the project site as OJB 
may reasonably request. OJB shall be entitled to rely upon 
the completeness and accuracy of such services and 
information. If the Client becomes aware of any fault or 
default in the project, the Client shall promptly notify OJB. 

10. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES. If so provided in 
Exhibit A to the Agreement, OJB shall make periodic visits 
to the site during the construction phase of the project to 

DRAFT



 
 

 
 

FIFA World Cup 2026 
Green Corridor 
Houston, TX 
Page 13 of 13 

become generally familiar with the progress and quality of 
the work, and to determine in general if the work is 
proceeding in accordance with the drawings and 
specifications furnished by OJB. It is understood that the 
contractor, not OJB, is solely responsible for the 
construction of the project, for safety programs and 
procedures at the site, and for its own acts or omissions 
and those of any subcontractor. OJB shall review and take 
appropriate action on the contractor’s submittals and 
application for payment, and shall furnish to the 
contractor such additional details, interpretations, and 
clarifications as are customary during the phase. All 
changes, substitutions, and deviations from the drawings 
and specifications furnished by OJB shall be subject to 
OJB’s approval. Should Owner not retain OJB to make 
periodic visits to site during the construction phase of the 
project to become generally familiar with the progress and 
quality of the work, OJB will not gain sufficient familiarity 
with the work to issue a final affidavit for the project. 

11. HIDDEN CONDITIONS. A condition is hidden if 
concealed by existing finishes or is not capable of 
investigation by reasonable visual observation. If OJB has 
reason to believe that such a condition may exist, the 
Client shall authorize and pay for all costs associated with 
the investigation of such a condition. If (1) the Client fails 
to authorize such investigation after due notification, or 
(2) OJB has no reason to believe that such a condition 
exists, OJB shall not be responsible for the existing 
condition nor the resulting damages to persons or 
property. 

12. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Unless otherwise set forth in 
the Agreement, professional services relating to the 
existence, identification, removal, containment, or 
abatement of asbestos, lead paint, toxic substances, or 
hazardous waste are not included in the scope of OJB’s 
services. The Client shall be solely responsible for, and 
shall release, indemnify, and defend OJB from and against 
all liability arising out of, the existence, identification, 
removal, containment, and/or abatement of asbestos, lead 
paint, toxic substances and/or hazardous waste (including 
those substances or conditions which affect or are alleged 
to affect indoor air quality) in connection with the Project. 

13. INSURANCE. OJB shall maintain the following insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement, and provide Client with 
certificates of insurance evidence said coverage: 

General Liability insurance policy written on an occurrence 
basis with policy limits of not less than 2,000,000 each 
occurrence and 4,000,000 aggregate.  

Automobile Liability written on an occurrence basis 
covering all owned, rented, and non-owned vehicles 
operated by OJB with policy limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit and aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage combined. 

Workers' Compensation that is statutorily required, and 
employer's liability of not less than $500,000 for each 
accident. 

Professional Liability insurance which shall insure against 
liability arising from negligent errors or omissions of OJB 
in the performance of its services. The policy shall be 
written on a claims-made basis and shall have limits of not 
less than $3,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the 
aggregate. OJB further agrees that it will maintain its 
Professional Liability insurance, which shall, at a minimum, 
have limits of not less than those set forth in this 
paragraph, on a continuous basis for five years following 
substantial completion. Such certificates shall provide for 

thirty (30) days advance written notice to Client of 
cancellation, or reduction of coverage or non-renewal.   

14. STANDARD OF CARE. OJB shall perform its services 
consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily 
provided by design professionals practicing in the same or 
similar locality under the same or similar circumstances 
(the “Standard of Care”). OJB shall perform its services so 
as to facilitate the orderly progress of the work in a 
manner which is consistent with the Project schedule, and 
in such a manner as to cause no delay or disruption in the 
Work. OJB shall, pursuant to this Standard of Care, perform 
its services in accordance with applicable laws, codes and 
regulations. 

15.PROFESSIONAL CREDIT. Client shall provide 
professional credit to OJB in the Client’s promotional 
materials or media submissions for the Project and shall 
not use any of OJB’s documents, renderings or drawings in 
such materials or submissions without OJB’s approval. To 
this end, at such time as one or more renderings produced 
by OJB are adopted by the Client as images of the Project 
for public presentations or other distribution, Client 
agrees to include on any reproductions furnished to public 
authorities, media consultants or the media, a legend 
including OJB’s complete name and logo, such that 
subsequent reproductions in the media will be more likely 
to include attribution of the design to OJB. This Section 
shall survive termination of the Agreement. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. The Agreement and 
incorporated exhibits represent the complete and 
integrated agreement between the parties; supersedes all 
prior agreements between the parties relating to the 
project; may be amended only in writing; is binding upon 
the parties, their successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives; and shall be interpreted and governed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Neither 
party shall assign the Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. All payment, liability, dispute 
resolution, release and indemnification provisions and 
other obligations of the parties under the Agreement that 
could reasonably be expected to be exercised after the 
expiration or sooner termination of the Agreement shall 
survive such expiration or sooner termination. The 
Agreement may be executed and delivered in any number 
of counterparts, each of which so executed and delivered 
shall be deemed to be an original and all of which, 
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

DRAFT


	Mt_TIRZ Agenda 12.05.2024(10558266.6)REv. 3.pdf
	1. Call to Order and Introduction of Guests
	2. Public Comment
	3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone
	a. Minutes for October 31, 2024
	4. Consent Agenda for the Authority
	a. Minutes for October 31, 2024
	b. Monthly financial reports for October 31, 2024
	c. Restatement of certain minutes for 2024 board meetings
	5. Investment Report for First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025 ending September 31, 2024
	6. Fiscal Year 2024 Budget
	7. Development Agreement with Pearl Residences at Midtown Owner, LLC
	8. Affordable Housing Program
	10.  Personnel, Compensation and Review Process
	11. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards to the following, as appropriate and necessary:
	a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);

	b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas           Government Code);
	c.  Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
	d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
	e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

	Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be discussed.
	12.  Adjourn

	Mt_TIRZ Agenda 01.29.2026(10948009.5).pdf
	1. Call to Order, Introduction of Guests and Board Comments
	2. Public Comment
	3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone
	a. Minutes for November 20, 2025
	4.  Consent Agenda for the Authority
	a. Minutes for November 20, 2025
	b. Monthly financial reports for November 30 and December 31, 2025
	5. Investment Report for Quarter Ending December 31, 2025
	6. Board Governance and Committee Composition
	a. Election of Officers
	7. Affordable Housing Program
	i. Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Maintenance Services at Midtown Park and Plaza and Bagby Park
	12. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards to the following, as appropriate and necessary:
	a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);

	b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas           Government Code);
	c. Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
	d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
	e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

	Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be discussed.
	Adjourn.

	Draft_Zone Minutes 11.20.25(10944721.2).pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS
	November 20, 2025

	Final_MRA Minutes 11.20.25(10944727.2).pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	November 20, 2025
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	Yige Eagle Tang of The Goodman Corporation introduced herself.
	Jack Valinski of Super Neighborhood 24 requested that the dates and times of Board meetings be consistent with the information posted on the Authority’s website and noted that sidewalk transitions into Midtown need to be extended for accessibility.
	CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE AUTHORITY
	MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 23, 2025
	MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR OCTOBER 31, 2025


	Mt_TIRZ Agenda 11.20.2025(10896446.2) (JOAD edit).pdf
	1. Call to Order, Introduction of Guests and Board Comments
	2. Public Comment
	3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone
	a. Minutes for October 23, 2025
	4.  Consent Agenda for the Authority
	a. Minutes for October 23, 2025
	b. Monthly financial reports for October 31, 2025
	5. Fiscal Year 2025 Budget
	6. MRA Board Governance and Committee Composition Discussion
	7. Affordable Housing Program
	10. Development Agreement with Pearl Residences at Midtown Owner, LLC
	11. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards to the following, as appropriate and necessary:
	a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);

	b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas           Government Code);
	c. Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
	d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
	e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

	Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be discussed.
	Adjourn.

	OJB_20260122 v2 PROP WC26 Green Corridor.pdf
	EXHIBIT A
	1.1 The project budget is as follows:
	1.2 The project’s phasing is as follows:
	1.3 Elements of the project include:
	1.4 The scope of this proposal excludes:
	1.1 Client: Midtown Redevelopment Authority
	1.2 Prime Consultant: OJB Landscape Architecture
	1.3 The Prime Consultant will coordinate with District sub-consultants and contractors provided by Client.
	1.1 Scope
	1.2 Duration
	1.3 Deliverables
	1.4 Meetings
	2.1 Scope
	2.2 Duration
	2.3 Meetings
	3.1 Scope
	3.2 Duration
	3.3 Deliverables
	3.4 Meetings
	4.1 Scope
	4.2 Submittals
	4.3 Changes in the Work
	4.4 Project Completion
	4.5 Duration
	4.6 Deliverables
	4.7 Meetings

	EXHIBIT B
	EXHIBIT C




